[image: image1.png]



Mayo Clinic Response to the

National Telecommunications Information Administration

Request for Information (RFI)
Overview of Mayo Clinic Perspective: Mayo Clinic is one of the largest integrated, not-for-profit medical practices in the world.   Encompassing clinical practice, medical education, and basic and translational research, the primary value upon which Mayo Clinic was founded and continues to operate is simple:  the needs of the patient come first.  Mayo includes three clinics and hospitals in Rochester, MN, Jacksonville, FL, and Scottsdale, AZ, and the Mayo Health System, a network of clinics and hospitals serving 70 communities in Minnesota, Wisconsin, and Iowa, as well as patients from all 50 states.  Mayo also includes nursing home, clinical laboratory, and pharmacy services.  In all, the Mayo Clinic includes 3,700 physicians and scientists; 3,200 residents, fellows, and students; and, over 50,000 staff.   Mayo serves more than half a million unique patients in over 4,700,000 encounters each year.  A 2001 study by Tripp Umbach Healthcare Consulting concluded that in 2000 Mayo’s impact on the Minnesota economy alone equaled $3.97 billion, or 1.3 percent of the total state economy. 

Mayo has been committed to an integrated information environment since ~1900 that includes continuous investment in infrastructure and applications to facilitate coordination of care, improved quality, and development and implementation of best practices.  In this way Mayo maximizes teamwork and continually redefines how it connects with patients and other healthcare providers.  With this information as a background we offer the following comments on the NTIA RFI.
Response to specific questions: The following are Mayo Clinic responses to specific questions in the joint Request for Information (RFI) concerning the Broadband Initiatives Program and the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program.  Mayo offers no comment on any questions not addressed in the following material.

I.A.  Streamlining the Applications – “How should NTIA link broadband infrastructure, public computer center and sustainable adoption projects through the application process?”  

General Comments: Comprehensive proposals should be requested to develop fully integrated telemedicine and e-Health networks.  Such proposals should outline ways applicants would:

- Establish specific broadband infrastructure to support the integration and sustainability of telemedicine and e-Health networks

- Establish data centers, nodes and data warehouse for electronic medical records and expanded next generation enterprise data warehouse initiatives

- Promote the development and adoption of fully integrated telemedicine and e-Health initiatives 

Mayo-Specific Comments: A Mayo proposal would include specifics of the Mayo Clinic Model of Care initiatives currently underway which could be enhanced or accelerated through grant funding.
I.A.2. Consortiums and Public-Private Partnerships – “How should the application be revised to reflect the participation of consortiums or public-private partnerships in the application process?”
General Comments: The process should promote and encourage private and public partnerships.  Applicants should acknowledge existing or potential partners and demonstrate successful past partnerships.  It would also be pertinent for applicants to illustrate their ability to leverage partnerships to successful project completion in the past.  However it is likely that at this juncture in the process the applicability and utility of specific partnerships is too fluid to address in detail.  Applicants should also acknowledge and describe their own in-house business and healthcare expertise and the technical capabilities to enhance connectivity with the U.S. patient population, thereby adding value to e-Health networks.  These capabilities may be inherent in the applicants’ staff and infrastructure, but may also be in partnership with other organizations.  The partners may be for-profit corporations, but they may also be other public or non-profit partners, health care providers and health care provider networks across the U.S.

I.A.3. Specification of Service Areas – “What level of data collection and documentation should be required of applicants to establish the boundaries of the proposed funded service areas? “
General Comments: The application process should clearly articulate the targeted population that needs to be served, the criteria for selecting that population, and overall program goals so that the U.S. population is best served by the programs selected for funding.  In a new health care delivery paradigm, service areas may not be encompassed by traditional boundaries such as geography or census district.  Applicants should identify the population they currently serve or intend to serve in future, but this should not be tied to past definitions of service area in order to realize the potential of nationwide connectivity.  Applicants should also demonstrate the appropriate infrastructure (either currently in place, or to be implemented) in order to serve the target population. 
Mayo-Specific Comments: A Mayo proposal would include relevant health information technology related, health information exchange and electronic medical record standards.  In addition, Mayo’s second generation Enterprise Data Warehouse will provide well defined structure for patient data storage and retrieval.  Patient care metrics will be implemented to measure quality across all of Mayo. Mayo Enterprise Information Management (EIM) initiatives will help advance key principles of the Mayo Clinic Model across our entire system.   

A Mayo proposal will also include substantial in-house capability in advanced electronics and wireless communications technologies, which in turn allow us to propose novel methods of outreach to the U.S. patient population heretofore not available from any commercial or noncommercial sources.  A Mayo proposal would also reference ongoing discussions with the Federal Communications Commission regarding best implementations of next-generation wireless-based support of patients in their home environments.

I.B. Transparency and Confidentiality – “Which data should be made publicly available and which data should be considered confidential or proprietary?”
General Comments: Transparency is a reasonable expectation when utilizing federal funds; conversely, confidentiality is also a critically important consideration that needs to be managed correctly.  It is reasonable to expect that an executive summary would be part of the public domain but sensitive information such as financial information or information about unique intellectual property disclosed in the application process should remain confidential.  However, statements of intent to collaborate or partner should be publically available.
I.C.  Outreach and Support – “What method of support and outreach was most effective? What should be done differently in the next round of funding to best assist applicants?”
General Comments:  Applicant support and outreach techniques should be noted, including workshops and outreach seminars, an application guidance manual, Frequently Asked Questions on www.broadbandusa.gov, and a Help Desk to field telephone and e-mail inquiries are all reasonable approaches.  The most critical aspect is that support staff be trained on the new focus with particular emphasis on the health care arena and facilitating clarification of specific middle and last mile questions related to comprehensive community projects.  It is suggested that linking applicants with like-minded or complementary proposals early on would be beneficial for the overarching goals of the programs. 

I.D.  NTIA Expert Review Process – “To further the efficient and expeditious disbursement of BTOP funds, should NTIA continue to rely on unpaid experts as reviewers? Or, should we consider using solely Federal or contractor staff?”
General Comments: The use of unpaid experts as reviewers is a reasonable approach with the following caveat.  At this stage, experts must focus on the end goal of a national integrated system that connects providers of all types with patients/family members and with each other for the overall improvement of health and to bend the cost curve of health care delivery for the nation.  Previous expert reviewers had knowledge of the private telecommunications industry.  At this stage, reviewers must have a foundation in health care, delivery of patient education and delivery of health care education of all types (student, resident, life-long learning).  Reviewers from impartial health care institutes such as the Institute of Medicine, the Institute for Healthcare Improvement, etc. could be of inestimable value for this process.   

II.A.1.  Middle Mile “Comprehensive Community” Projects – “Should RUS and/or NTIA focus on or limit round 2 funding on projects that will deliver middle mile infrastructure facilities into a group of communities and connect key anchor institutions within those communities?”
General Comments: Yes, the focus should reflect the ability of projects to deliver or improve “middle mile” connectivity to others for the delivery of existing, new or emerging tele-health/telemedicine applications.  Our definition of “middle mile” includes data centers and high speed infrastructure.   A set of “middle mile” criteria should be established to determine what emphasis should be placed on funding of projects, including being environmentally-friendly (code green), reliable, high availability, disaster-tolerant, shared utility, etc. 
Mayo-Specific Comments: Mayo Clinic would reference its existing connectivity in the physical locations it currently serves, and would illustrate the service opportunities to patients, providers, health care students and the public if funding were available to expand and enhance these existing capabilities within and beyond Mayo Clinic.  In addition, Mayo might reference its ongoing development of advanced wireless-based technology allowing and supporting outreach to patients in their home environments, thereby leveraging the middle mile infrastructure and ultimately enabling “last mile” of connectivity.

 “Should we give priority to those middle mile projects in which there are commitments from last mile service providers to use the middle mile network to serve end users in the community?

General Comments: Yes.  Priority should be given to applicants that demonstrate middle mile infrastructure to realize the value of last mile connectivity such as home health care, home monitoring, etc.  
“Should the agencies' goal be to fund middle mile projects that provide new coverage of the greatest population and geography so that we can be assured that the benefits of broadband are reaching the greatest number of people?” 

General Comments: Yes.  The agency should fund middle mile projects that provide new coverage of the greatest population and geography; however, the agency should focus on funding middle mile projects that serve the core infrastructure necessary to enable national application of telemedicine.   The agency should also recognize that emerging wireless technologies will allow an amalgamation of both the “middle mile” and the “last mile” of connectivity in a single implemented technology.

“Should we target projects that create "comprehensive communities" by installing high capacity middle mile facilities between anchor institutions that bring essential health, medical, and educational services to citizens that they may not have today?”

General Comments: Yes.   Greatest weight should be given to institutions that work to meet the greatest need and demonstrate commitment to safety, high quality, coordination and affordable service delivery, and/or efforts that foster effective distribution of health education information to patients or providers through patient education, professional development or continuing medical education.

Mayo-Specific Comments: Mayo would reference its multi-faceted integrated activities that provide patient care, patient and provider education and transformative research that provide high value to the public and generate significant economic development.  

Should we consider the number of existing community anchor institutions that intend to connect to the middle mile network as well as the number of unserved and underserved communities and vulnerable populations (i.e., elderly, low-income, minority) that it will cover?

General Comments: Yes.  Such commitments demonstrate the applicant’s track record for collaboration and partnership with the public and private sectors, and their dedication to the overarching goal of the BIP and BTOP efforts.

Mayo-Specific Comments: Mayo Clinic would reference its facilities in Arizona, Florida, Minnesota and the Mayo Health System, as well as its connections with elderly, minority and Native American communities in those states and a Memorandum of Understanding with the Indian Health Service.

How should RUS and NTIA encourage appropriate levels of non-Federal (State, local, and private) matching funds to be contributed so that the potential impact of Federal funds is maximized?  

General Comments: Applicants should be asked to outline matching funds and in kind contributions of various state, local and private agencies that will contribute to the potential impact of project funding.  Specifically applicants should outline their past records and note investments that have been made in demonstrating middle mile infrastructure development.  Levels of matching funds will be dependent upon business models employed and the incentives for private-public, and non-profit –private and/or multi-state collaborations.  An additional factor that should be considered is the existing investment already made by applicants, either individually or through collaborations and partnerships.  This demonstrates existing commitment and experience with such efforts that will enhance the opportunity for successful project completion.

Mayo-Specific Comments:  A Mayo proposal would make reference to our vision and principles for Health Information Technology, and the extensive IT roadmap we have created for Mayo Clinic locations across the country.

II.A.2.  Economic Development –  “Should RUS and/or NTIA allocation a portion of the remaining funds…to promote a regional economic development approach to broadband deployment?  This option would focus the Federal broadband investment on communities that have worked together on a regional basis to develop an economic development plan?  Using this option, NTIA and RUS could target funding toward both the short term stimulus of project construction and the region’s longer term development of sustainable growth and quality jobs. For instance, rather than look at broadband investments in both rural and urban communities as stand-alone actions, should RUS and NTIA seek applications for projects that would systematically link broadband deployment to a variety of complementary economic actions…? 
General Comments: Yes.  Portions of remaining funds should be targeted for approaches that integrate various forms of health care delivery models such as primary, secondary, tertiary and quaternary care across the continuum of care such as inpatient outpatient nursing homes, and other types of care provision.  This would cover both rural and urban communities and stimulate job development in those areas. Telemedicine and tele health initiatives are a new paradigm that requires innovative approaches not only in project design and implementation, but also in the deployment of emerging communications technologies heretofore not available in the U.S., and in the funding of such projects.  

Mayo-Specific Comments:

Mayo would reference such initiatives as collaborations such the Bio-Business Alliance, collaborations with the University of Minnesota, the Hormel Institute and others.  For example the Minnesota Partnership with University of Minnesota is designed to speed translation of discoveries into increased economic activity and jobs. 
II.A.3.   Targeted Populations – “How can funds for Public Computer Centers and Sustainable Broadband Adoption projects be targeted to increase broadband access and use among vulnerable populations?

General Comments: In the future, through national health care reform efforts and innovations fostered by such efforts as the BIP and BTOP programs, innovative delivery models that reach out more effectively to all populations including vulnerable segments of our society will transform our understanding of what is possible in this arena.  Emphasis should be on innovative, coordinated projects that demonstrate an understanding of the unique needs of vulnerable populations and patients, and the application of emerging communications technologies, will help to maximize the impact of the fund dollars for these groups.
II.A.4.  Other Changes – “To the extent that we do target the funds to a particular type of project or funding proposal, how if at all, should we modify our evaluation criteria?
General Comments:  Portions of the funds should be targeted to investments in infrastructure such as data centers high speed networks etc. that will serve the greatest population in the future such as underserved communities and rural areas, patients with chronic illness, etc.
II.B.  Program Definitions -  “Should the definition of broadband include a higher speed and should the speeds relate to the types of projects?”  

General Comments: Yes, higher speeds are necessary to enable the development of robust interchange and foster innovation regarding new ways to share and collect information.  Speeds would logically relate to the type of project, and a tiered and scalable approach would allow the most flexibility for targeted populations and communities.

Concerning the definition of “remote area” – “Should factors other than distance be considered, such as income levels, geographic barriers and population densities?”
General Comments: Yes, a broad range of factors beyond geography or population density should be considered.  Projects of significant worth may not meet criteria based only upon a geographic definition.  Remote areas should be defined as areas that do not have accessibility to national or regional medical centers.
Mayo-Specific Comments: For example, Mayo might consider expansion of wireless monitoring capabilities not only across rural un- or underserved areas, but within existing urban service areas in order to increase efficiencies and decrease costs.  

II.F.  Cost Effectiveness – “What evidence should we require from applicants to ensure that unnecessary costs have not been added to the project?”
General Comments:  Applicants should have the resources and processes in place to manage and account for federal grant related funds, including compliance, regulatory and other related activities.  Appropriate methods should be in place to judge the effectiveness of the investments that have been made on a given project.  Metrics might include an equation measuring value as outcome, safety and service, divided by cost over time and demonstration of widespread coordination of care and interoperability across a variety of disparate providers (e.g., physician practices, clinics, public health services, pharmacies, etc.).
Mayo-Specific Comments: Specifically, Mayo Clinic would cite its Office of Sponsored Projects Administration, Compliance Unit, and Research Finance areas; all have extensive dedicated resources available to provide the necessary reports and management of grant funds and related activities.  

II. G.  Other – “What other substantive changes to the NOFA should RUS and NTIA consider that would encourage applicant participation, enhance the programs, and satisfy the goals of the Recovery Act?”
General Comments: Asking applicants to demonstrate that their plans will improve the value of services delivered to patients and the public, and improve the coordination and cost effectiveness of the delivery of medical care and/or health care education would enhance the program and ensure selection of projects that meet the goals of the Recovery Act.   Comprehensive community plans should be required to demonstrate how proposals will enhance technical adoption, address socioeconomic barriers, provide significant benefit to the greatest populations, and outline sustainable business models.   
Review Criteria – Mayo Clinic offers the following background and comments related to application review criteria.  In addition to addressing the issues outlined above, successful applications should demonstrate.
· Evidence of institutional expertise in relevant technical areas

· Overall expertise in health information technology (HIT)

· Existence of a comprehensive strategic plan for HIT 

· Prior success in using HIT to improve outcomes, quality and value

· Ability to plan and manage large projects in a timely and cost effective manner

· Is there a comprehensive data management and governance plan for the institution?

· Evidence of prior and ongoing institutional commitment to related infrastructure

· What prior or planned institutional investments will be leveraged by any resources awarded?

· What prior and or planned partnerships will be leveraged by any resources awarded?

· Evidence that the resources will be used to enhance the coordination of medical care and as a result improve quality and value.
· Does the institution have a history of effective data mining of medical records and other data to improve patient care?

· Is there a comprehensive institutional system that permits diffusion and implementation of strategies to improve patient care quality and value?  Is this information widely shared to other providers and practitioners via extramural educational activities and communication?
· Evidence that institutional privacy and ethics safeguards are state of the art.

· Are there robust privacy policies related to electronic health information?

· Is there an institutional mechanism to provide “Bioethics” support to institutional HIT initiatives?

· Evidence of institutional commitment to national HIT standards including interoperability.
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